Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting
Agenda

August 10, 2015

Meeting starts: 6:30 PM
Location: Gile Hall
Pledge of Allegiance

Regular Meeting
1. Minutes: Select Board meeting minutes of July 27, 2015 - 5 minutes
2. Warrant: #5&6— 5 minutes

Communications — 30 minutes
3. Select Board communications
4. Town Manager
5. Boards, Committees, Commissions & Departments
Trails minutes

Appointments/Reappointments: - 5 minutes
' 6. Appointment — Cemetery Committee — Andrews Tolman
7. Resignation — Trails Committee —Christine Sammons

Unfinished Business
8. Notice of Public Hearing — 5 minutes
New Business:
9, Transfer Stations 30 minutes
10. Log books in each vehicles — 5 minutes
11. Select Board Retreat — 20 minutes
12. Other - 10 minutes

Public Communications:
13. Members of the public may address the Select Board on any topic — 15 minutes

Executive Session -1 MRSA § 405 (6)(A) Personnel Matters — Town Manager Applications
Executive Session 1 MRSA § 405 (6)(D) Labor Negotiations

Adjournment







MINUTES

Town of Readfield — SELECT BOARD

07/34/2015
2%

6:32 PM TOWN OFFICE

' MEMBERS PRESENT

Valarie Pomerleau, Allen Curtis, Bruce Bourgoine, Christine Sammons

MEMBERS ABSENT

Thomas Dunham,

| MEETING TYPE

SELECT BOARD MEETING

‘NOTE TAKER

1 Tina L. Cagle

 ATTENDEES

Town Manager, Theresa Shaw, John Parent, John Perry, Shelly rstein, Wendy Dennis, Laurence Perkins, Alexander

1e, Jada Clark

Agenda topics

Wright, Raland Cote, Will Harris, Ann Keilty, Gary Keilty, Grac
y

* DISCUSSION |

1)

Second by Selectperson Curtis

| Motion passes: 4-0

"| Mation by Selectperson Curtis to approve the m

| Second by Selectperson Sa

" | Motion passes: 4-0

1 Second by Selectperson Curtis

| Motion passes; #:87,.

- DISCUSSION | 2

- DISCUSSION

| MOTION

SECOND

PASS/FAIL

7 #5 BOARDS & COMMI]TEES
) DISCUSSION | 1) Chalrpersun Pomedeau thanked a|i the committees for thelr mlnutes

| MOTION

‘SECOND

‘PASS/FAIL

o #6 APPOINTMENTS -

"7 DISCUSSION 1}
‘MOTION Motion by Selectperson Curtis to approve the application to the Recreation Committee for Jada Clark.
SECOND Second by Selectperson Bourgoing,

1 SELECT BOARD MINUTES

07/24/2015




| PASS/FAIL

Motion passes 4-0

#7. BOARD msou T0 connrrrsn o

MOTION

Motion by Selectperson Bourgome to suspend the policy I.Il"ltll further dlscussmn

 SECOND Second by Chairperson Sammons
o DISCUSSION Chairperson Pomerleau mentioned that the policy has not been in place for very long and would like to continue the
. policy until otherwise discussed.
‘MOTION Selectperson Bourgoine withdraws his motion.
: DISCUSSION | The pol:cy wﬂl be dlscussed at a future meetlng
#8 RESIGNATIOH
DISCUSSION | 1)
T Motion by Selectperson Bourgoine to regretfully accept the remgnatmn of Lorraine Wagner from the Cematery
-MOTION C
B ommittee.
| SECOND Second by Selectperson Sammons.
'PASS/FAIL Motion passes: 4-0
1
DISCUSSION high and that was the only bid.
L 2) The culvert can winter over with no issu
| MOTION
' SECOND
| PASS/FAIL
DISCUSSION
SECOND
'PASS/FAIL
- DiISCUSSION Waste Systeri® and has applied for use of the transfer station.
- MOTION ation for Troiano Waste Services.
SECOND 5 .

)

 PASS/FAIL o .
DISCUSSION | 1)
“MOTION | Motlon by Seled
| SECOND ;%_econd by Selectpegt
PASS/FAIL “Mtion passes: 4-0 %
MOTION Nﬁ%\/ Seiectperson%-tls to ask the Town Manager to advertise the Secret Baliot by all available means.
- SECOND o
‘PASS/FAIL
DISCUSSION
 MOTION Pathway, and 2™ réCommendation as Mill Stream Trail.
SECOND Second by Selectperson Sammons.
PASS/FAIL Motion passes: 4-0
orscussion | G st Gl vt et g g e pce.
‘#12 PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS
DISCUSSION | 1}
‘MOTION
SECOND
PASS/FAIL

EXECUTIVE SESSION

2 SELECT BOARD MINUTES

07/24/2015




DISCUSSION | 1)

Motion by Selectperson Curtis to enter into executive session per M.R.S.A. for Union Updates,

MOTION
SECOND Second by Selectperson Sammons.

PASS/FAIL Motion passes: 4-0

Adjourn: 8:05 pm

L

//ff//
i,
!

i

o
¢
L
D

_
L N
- .

"

|
% %
/ .
//////y o

3 SELECT BOARD MINUTES

07/24/2015













MAINE MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION

Risk Managemeni Services Telephone No.
60 Community Drive (207) 626-5583
RO, Box 9109 (800) 590-5583 Maine Only
Augusta, Maine 04332-9109 Fax No. (207) 626-0513
DATE: August 4, 2015
TO: Members of the Workers Compensation Fund and the Property & Casualty
Pool :
FROM: Patricia Kablitz, CPCU, ARM

Director, Risk Management Services
RE: Dividend Payments

We are pleased to announce that the Board of Trustees of the MMA Workers
Compensation Fund voted at its May 21, 2015 meeting to allow a dividend to the members
of the Fund who meet the established criteria. Continuing members whose 2014
contributions are greater than $25,000 annually, whose 2014 loss ratio is less than 40% and
whose three-year loss ratio is less than 75% will receive a 5.72% dividend. Continuing
members whose 2014 contributions are less than $25,000 annually and whose loss ratio is
less than 50% for the three years ending December 31, 2014, will also receive a 5.72%
dividend. All losses are valued as of June 30, 2015. '

The Board of Directors of the MMA Property & Casualty Pool voted at its May 21, 2015
meeting to allow a dividend to current members of the Pool who meet the established
criteria. To earn a dividend, a member must have a loss ratio of 50% or less for the
qualifying year of July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, calculated and valued as of June 30, 2015.
Continuing members whose participation began on July 1, 2009 or prior will earn a 5.41%
dividend and members who joined after July 1, 2009 will receive a 4.41% dividend.

Cost savings are realized in providing services to members who participate in both the
Property & Casualty Pool and the Workers Compensation Fund. In recognition of the
savings, both boards voted to add 1% to the dividends for each program for members who
qualify and earn a dividend. You are among the members who participate in both the
Workers Compensation Fund and the Property & Casuaity Pool. Therefore, if you earned a
dividend for either or both programs, the additional 1% has been included in the calculation.

Dividends are being paid in the Workers Compensation Fund and Property & Casualty Pool
totaling $1,198,485. Both goveming boards are very pleased with the results of their
respective programs and thank you for your support and continued participation. Good
management practices and sound loss prevention measures on the part of all of the
members have contributed to the success of these programs. Your entity is a big part of this
success.

Your check is enclosed with this letter. We have also enclosed a press release that may be .
used to announce the result of your successful risk management activities and good loss
experience to your community. If you have any questions about the dividends or any of the
Risk Management Services programs, please call me at 800-590-5583. Additional copies of
this letter are included for your elected officials.







June 23, 2015 Trails Committee Meeting Minutes

Present: Will Harris, Nancy Buker, Bob Harris; Hank Laidlaw, Ken Clark, Milt Wright, Lydia Adelson, Gary
Keilty, Ann Keilty, Romaine Turyn, Chris Sammons

Excused Absent: Karen Peterson, Rob Peale, Jeanne Harris
Chair Milt Wright called the meeting to order at the Town Office at 6:30 PM.

May 26, 2015 Minutes: Motion to accept by Will Harris, seconded by Ken Clark with correction of the
spelling of McDougald. Approved by unanimous vote.

Milt Wright went over the three secret ballot articles that pertained to the Trails Committee.

1. Article #22-To accept and appropriate an anticipated donation in the amount of $2700 for
Readfield Trails Committee projects. Yes 586, No 91, Blank 16

2. Article #50-Authorize Select Board to enter into Trail Easements and Agreements with private
property owners. Yes 488, No 174, blank 31

3. Article #51-To accept previously signed trail agreement between the Town of Readfield and the
Union Meeting House. Yes 566, No 95, Blank 32

Ken Clark updated us on the Strategic Plan. He passed out the Strategic Plan, updated by Ken Clark,
Hank Laidlaw and Lydia Adeison (Included in the minutes). Ken Clark asked Lydia Adelson to update her
visit to the schools. Lydia said her visit to the High School was very positive. She talked to the secretary
and she was going give a copy to the physical education teacher. She was also going to give the map to
all of the teachers and stress the whole family could use the trails. Lydia then visited the elementary
school and talked to Sherry Williams. She agreed to put the maps in the lobby and send it home in the
newsletter. Sherry Williams also sent the information to the other three elementary schools and they
* are putting it in their newsletters. Shawn Harper, Spirit of America Award recipient, was at the school
working with the students on their lunch break with a walking program. He was receptive to promoting
the trails. Will Harris asked if the high school had an Outing Club and suggested getting in touch with
Carol Leone who runs a non-profit Teens to Trails. It could bring teens to the trails for enjoyment and
labor. Lydia is going to talk to the biology teacher because the students have a yearlong project of
checking an area for a year. They are also going to follow up at the beginning of the school year. Ken
also said he could envision Mom'’s walking together with their strollers on the trails. Everyone thought
the Strategic Plan Committee did a good job.

Hank submitted the estimated cost for the new gatepost anchors for the existing gate at the old landfill
road (included). He says he spoke with Tom Donegay who was very helpful by recommending Auburn
Concrete and the shape of the slabs to be trapezoid to reduce frost from moving the slabs. Hank
thought Tom would visit the site with them. Gary remarked that before the election Lenny Reay had
agreed to help out with moving the gate and he would check and see if he still agreed. Chris Sammons
asked if anyone had approached Bill Rourke. No one had.

Nancy Buker explained in detail how the Readfield Trails Trust Fund was established and her report is
included with the minuets. Nancy did an excellent job walking us through the process. We had two
donations last year of $100 and $25 which is in the account. Milt ran into Jeff White, who donated the




$100, on the trails and he said he was going to donate again this year. He is a traveling nurse and ends
up in Readfield this time of year and loves the trails.

Suggested name for the Mill Stream trail was Mill Stream Pathway. Romaine Turyn asked if anyone liked
Mill Stream Way. Will Harris made a motion to call the trail the Mill Stream Pathway and it was
seconded by Nancy Buker. The motion passed with a unanimous vote. Will Harris will request a public
hearing because he is an abutter to the trail.

Milt Wright says we have six stewards for the trails, Milt Wright, Gary Keilty, Bob and Jeanne Harris,
Hank Laidiaw and Chris Sammons. He wanted to ask Will Harris to be the Steward for the Mill Stream
Pathway. Romaine Turyn made the motion for Will Harris to be the steward for the Mill Stream
Pathway and it was seconded by Ken Clark. The motion passed with a unanimous vote.

Hank Laidlaw reported on the continuation of the Community Pathway behind the Union Meeting
house. He says it has a whole new look. Trees were taken down and the huge debris pile was removed
to make room for the blue stone. The blue stone is down from the end of the pathway to Church Road.
There is a culvert by Church Road under the blue stone. Many volunteered for this project, Milt Wright,
Bob Harris, Jeanne Harris, Gary Kelity, Ann Keilty and Hank Laidlaw. Milt Wright says there is poison ivy
next to the pathway.

Ann Keilty reported that the signs were going to be put up Friday morning. Mark Birtwell was going to
be at the Fairgrounds at 8 AM to start on the post holes. There are three yard arm signs for Church
Road, Route 17 and the superintendent’s office, coordinated by Tim Sniffen and Jerry Bley. Ann Keilty,
Milt Wright, Bob Harris and Lydia Adelson all agreed to volunteer Friday morning.

Ann Keilty also reported on the wonderful presentation Ellen Blanchard did on the rocks surrounding the
parking lot in the Fairgrounds on National Trails Day. Hank Laidlaw said it was a lively 2 % hour
presentation. Ann is assisting Ellen stocking her pamphlets at the kiosk.

Gary Keilty wanted to get a packet to the Select Board before they went on retreat in August educating
the board to hours volunteered by Trails volunteers equating to in kind donation of $20,000. He had
given it to Valarie Pomerleau but he didn’t think she had shared it with the rest of the board. Milt
suggested it be taken up at the next meeting when he was no longer on the committee. Romaine
wanted to know why Miit didn’t want to address package for Select Board tonight. Milt said it would be
better to wait. Wiil said it would look like a set up if we sent something to the Select Board right off.

Gary Keilty detailed the ditching at the Fairgrounds so that heavy rains drain correctly. The tractor left
tracks, so we need rakers to smooth it out. The rip rap for the trail started out with huge rocks, but then
a load of a manageable size rocks was obtained. The Fairgrounds is turning into a multi-use complex.
Nancy said we need a picnic table, other committees are afraid of vandalism and trash. A contractor
was hired to eradicate the poison ivy.

Lydia Adelson reported on Heritage Days. Karen Dube is planning a triathlon for different age groups.
Lydia thought we should have a booth for water, maps etc. Talked about getting shirts with Nancy’s
Trail sign for a picture to identify us as the Trails Committee. Let Gary and Ann know if you want a shirt.

Gary Keilty wants a small sub-committee to meet with Bill and Flo Drake about the Drake’s property off
Church Road.



Milt Wright said the budget for fiscal year ending 6.30.15 had $46 left over but Mark Britwell’s time had
to be charged off.

Milt Wright said he didn’t receive any feedback from the Recreation Committee or Conservation
Committee on the Ballfield Governance Document.

Other Business - Milt Wright filled everyone in on the damage to Torsey Pond Nature Preserve.
Someone had ridden an ATV on the access and flattened 10 trees. A piece of plastic was found at the
foot of the bridge that could have come off the ATV. Kennebec Land Trust wants to file charges.

Will Harris made the motion to adjourn the meeting and it was seconded by Ken Clark. The motioned
passed by unanimous vote.

Meeting adjourned at 8:43 PM.
Submitted by:
Chris Sammons

Substitute Secretary







RECENEY ™" TOWN OF READFIELD <)/ g |

DATE RECEIVED -

APPOINTMENT APPLICATION

The Select Board shall not discriminate against an applicant based on religion, age, sex, marital status, race color,
ancestry, national origin, sexual orientation or physical or mental disabilities. The Select Board may exclude from
consideration any applicant with physical or mental disabilities only when the physical or mental handicap would
prevent the applicant fr_gm pefforming the duties of the appointment and reasonable accommodaition cannot be made.

The Select Board shall have final authority over the appointment of citizens to Boa'r'ds, Committees and Commissions
that are instruments of Town Government. The Select Board shall not appoint an applicant to a positicn for which the

applicant will likely have a frequent or recurring conflict of interest.

Please check one: \Z | 1* time appointment re-appointment

Which Board, Committee or Commission

are you applying for? | | ' - .
o [Qma)"ﬁm’ Comn il )

Name: (\! V\c&'i? A /\‘ZAW\CFV\ , _ Phone {H): &S Lt qu _
Street address: ¢ 2 Ny \,\- | Phone (C): _SH 32U T 6 S/
)7 -

Mailing address:

E-Mail: _ < \<R o LWE '3L7\A¢_ «

Below please tell us of any experience angl{[bp_,.training that might be useful in this position.

1 ' 1
LA -.r-A’E?aqu‘ b ¢ o - <

«-‘fﬁ\lqﬂl‘g I ;Qoﬁ \y N_')fv-,n 7 3 g*—-«hm?J QEQE&’?JVX(\MNA amt Qmﬁ\_ma S

Below please tell usthe reason you are interested in applying for this position.

— §Jz/ d\j'z:: ,l()\

If you are currently employed, what is your position?

pat] tac




o APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT FOR:
- Name: (3 !\\ (E’kw‘q"_‘ Position (’Q;ﬂ({-Q_{L—; L’Dnhﬂ?‘b{ Ternm: %%O"\YA

dtepocboEcoDOBDSOD bavpoenpooeBER EpaesappOUabopopENDODE VdcopoasEcERrNDOODOOOOGOCOOR Oﬂﬂﬂﬂuﬂunﬂn““n“ﬂn.nhuﬂnu'gnﬂnn.gnannhueupﬂ-

CLERK’S USE BEFORE THE APPOINTMENT

Term: | QD’Q_)O AO0\R j

If no, please explain:

is there a recommendation attached? D\'es ' No If no, please explain:

CLERK’S USE AFTER THE APPOINTMENT

Chair has been notified of appointment? DYes F_ No If yes, what date:

Is an Cath appropriate: ' DYes No if yes, What date:

SELECT BOARD APPOINTMENT , .
To M@m% of Readfield, in the County of Kennebec and State of Maine: There
being a position on the ( :E! - F#q\; l CO\N\ . _ we the-Select Board of the Municipality
of Readfield do, in accordance wit the prowisions of the laws of the State of Maine, hereby appoint you to
said position within and for the Municipality of Readfield, such appointment to be effective: '

" r ] thru I 6.60_\8 l Given under our hand this , day of | , 2015,

Bruce Bourgoine Allen Curtis . Thomas Dunham

Valarie Pomerleau " Christine Sammons -







Robin L. Lint

o el R
From: Christine Sammons <selectboard.cs13@yahoo.com>
Sent: . Tuesday, July 28, 2015 6:28 AM
To: ‘ Teresa Shaw; Valarie Pomerleau; Robin L. Lint
Subject: Letter of Resignation sent to Milt Wright 6.19.15
Milt,

> Please accept this email as my letter of resignation from my appointment to the Trails Committee effective 6/30/15. 1
will start my 3 year term with the Select Board on 7/1/15. Please keep me on your volunteer list because I stili wish to
spend some of my free time working on the trails. It was a wonderful committee to serve on and I enjoyed working with all
of you.

> Chris

>







Town of Readfield
MUNICIPAL OFFICERS’ NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON

SECRET BALLOT REFERENDUM

Notice is hereby given that the Municipal Officers of the Town of Readfield will hold a public hearing on

August 10, 2015 at 6:15 pm at the Readfield Town office building in Readfield to hear public comment on
the following: '

Article 1: To elect a moderator to preside at said meeting and to vote by written ballot.

Article 2: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $21,400 for the General Government for Assessing
budget category?

Article 3: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $28,746 for the General Government for the Code
Enforcement/Plumbing Inspector/Building Inspector budget category?

‘Article 4: Shall'the Town vote to raise and appropriate $7,200 for the Capital Improvements for the
Equipment budget category with any unexpended balance to be carried forward?

Article 5: Shall the Town vote to appropriate $8,000 for the Capital Improvements for the Maranacook Dam
budget category using carry forward funds 10100
with any unexpended balance to be carried forward?

Article 6: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $20,000 for the Capital Improvements for the
Maranacook Dam budget category with any unexpended balance to be carried forward?

Article 7: Shall the Town vote to appropriate funds not to exceed $7,000 to cover Overdrafts from the
Unassigned Fund Balance?

. RETURN
Readfield, Maine
Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. §2528(5), we have this day, being at least seven days before the hearing, notified
the inhabitants of said Readfield of a public hearing, to be held at the time and place, and for the purposes
stated above, by posting a copy of said notice at the following public and conspicuous places in said
Readfield. Readfield Post Office, Kents Hill Post Office and Readfield Town Office.

, 2015 Bruce Bourgoine

Allen Curtis

Thomas Dunham

Valarie Pomerleau

Christine Sammons







Agenda for SWRC Special Meeting 7-9-15 at Readfield Town Office 5 to 7:15 pm

Members: Aaron Chrostowsky, Mary Farnham, Stephanie Haynes, Teresa Shaw, Darcy
Whittemore, and Kathryn Mills Woodsum-Chair

Members absent: Tom Dunham, Glen Hawes; and Jon Lamarche
Public: Mark Birtwell
1. Disposal costs for all demclition 1 hour 50 mins

The Readfield Select Board has asked us to consider solutions to the demo costs not
matching the amounts collected from residents. They are ready to enact something and
would like our input first. We should plan on developing several solutions and
listing them out with our preference for the Select Board to consider.

Teresa gave us an analysis back to 2011 showing fees billed toc us and fees collected.
Fees are not cocllected to match costs, over a four-year period, for all demo and
shingles. We need a solution for the towns to collect the proper fees for all demo
and shingles.

We discussed this for almost 2 hours and considered all of the following
recommendations multiple times, and decided the only approach worth considering was a
multi~pronged one as the situation is complex in nature, and the combination of all
the recommendations is needed.

The situation as we see 1t: “Waste materials are brought in to the site on a regular
basis and are removed when the collection bins are full. Residents are required to
pay for all items deposited in the bins. The monies collected match the slips written
for receipts to residents and turned in to the Readfield Town Office. However, the
monies collected do not nearly match the charges for disposal of the materials,
consistently over a four-year period.

There is an effect of weight being added to the demo bin only due to rain and snow
accumulating in the bin. A driveway barrier gate is the only protection against
dumping when the site is not staffed. Evidence shows that residents are not always
charged for items, for various reasons, primarily due to small quantities being
brought to dispose of.” :

Proposed solution approach:

1) We need to shed light on what is occurring with the demo. Tally the total on
Teresa’'s sheets and present to both the Readfield and Wayne Select Boards and
the transfer station employees.

2) Pass out the Transfer Station pamphlet to all folks who register vehicles at
each town office (after revision of typos and inclusion of 2-bag limit per
vehicle for democ charges; partial truck fee applies after 2 bag limit.)

3} Covers for the demo bins, costs approved for by both towns in June 2015 at town
meetings, should be ordered immediately and installed.

4) Refine transfer station attendant job description to include expanded workplace
rules.

a. At least one employee must be present in the drop-off zone at all times.
b. Greet all customers as they enter the drop-off zone. All wvehicles must

see the attendant before dumping anything, whether for a fee or for free.
Attendant sees everything each vehicle is bringing before anything is




dropped. Attendants stand outside all day positioned at the beginning of
the unloading zone.

c. Evaluate the load the customer is bringing, provide direction for: where
to place items, what cannot go in the swap-shop, and what must be paid
for.

d. Write bill and receipt in front of customer while monitoring placement of
materials disposed of. Coliect fees and provide receipt to customer.

e. Every placement of materials into the demo or shingles bins, clean wood
waste, ltems with Freon, household hazardous waste, and propane tanks
areas, must have a receipt written for.

f. Fee schedule must be posted visibly for all customers to see.

g. Fee schedules will be passed out to all customers during the months of
July, August and September of 2015. (To assist in startup of each town
office passing out with vehicle registrations.)

h. Lead worker of the shift will take a photo of the demo and shingles bins
at opening and closing every day on town provided camera and provide to
transfer station manager each Tuesday morning.

i. Advise workers that demo loads for all materials must match with fees
collected and charges billed to the town. Employees will be shown
historical data for wvalidation of cost issues. Employees will be held
accountable in the same manner as all front office employees of the town
office are; i.e. all financial transactions must match up for collections
and charges.

j. Provide employees with needed support to enact correct and reliable
transactions; i.e. fees posters and brochures, signs, and security
cameras, training on revised workplace rules,

5) Install new signage and implement new dropping procedures.

a. Signage is outdated, worn and faded, missing, or never placed. Proper
signage is key to customers using the transfer station correctly. Uniform
signs in size, color and printing are the most clearly visibie. Green
background for free disposal, red background for pay disposal.

Directional signs for improved and safe traffic flow. All signs posted
prominently and in correct location.

b. New dropping procedure is: A transfer station employee will greet all
customers as they enter the drop-off zone, where their load will be
evaluated for what 1s being disposed of. Direction will be provided for:
where to place items, what cannot go in the swap-shop, and what must be
paid for. Customer will receive a bill written by the employee for all
materials that require a fee, as noted on the fee schedule posted
prominently, and must pay on site when billed. Customer will receive a
receipt for every transaction.

e TInstall security cameras at the transfer station to monitor transactions between
the residents and the employees as well as after-hours activity.

¢ There is no other way to secure the facility. and to moniter what is
deposited into the bins and disposal areas.




o Cameras will be mounted in strategic locations to record vehicle license
plates, items in disposal areas, and in the event of after hours illegal
dumping the vehicles, persons and items in the area.

o Recording equipment will be in a locked container accessible only by the
transfer station manager.

© Transfer station manager will be responsible for reviewing film weekly to
spot-check for discrepancies and for review whenever a questionable event
has taken place.

o Transfer station manager will be responsible for demo load costs matching
demo fees collected. All reascnable procedures to ensure financially
responsible operation of the site may be enacted.

Costs for above items can be paid for with carry-forward transfer station funds
from each town. Signage had been included in the previous two budgets, and was
not purchased, thus comprising part of the carry-forward fund. A warrant article
for permission to spend from carry-forward funds for signs and cameras can be
written and placed on the warrant for the upcoming town meeting in August or
September.

This recommendation is for immediate implementation with an October 1°° deadline
for completion. )

Signs - Update on design and placement 10 mins

Darcy visited the transfer station and discussed needs with Glenn and Mike.
Kathryn alsc visited the transfer station, and met with the transfer station
manager and the town maintenance worker, Darcy and Kathryn discussed needed
signage. Kathryn designed signs and presented tc the transfer station manager
in June. The sign designs, as listed below, were shared with evervone in
attendance.

24" x 24" Aluminum sign, 80 mil, Engineer Grade Reflective, Green background,
White lettering
1 - COMMERCIAL HAULERS ONLY ON THURSDAYS

1 - METALS NO picking from pile No LP Gas Tanks, No Gas Cans, HNo
Whole Cars

1 - GREEN COMPOSTARBLE Grass clippings, Plants, Weeds

1- BROWN COMPOSTABLE Leaves, Horse Manure

1- COMPOST 2 BUCKET LIMIT

1- SAND 2 BUCKET LIMIT

1- BRUSH NO FEE iﬂ? - {arrow below letters)

i- LOADING ZONE 4h {arrow below letters}

We would like the titles in largest letter size to fit sign, and the rest in
appropriate letter size for best visibility.

24" x 24" Aluminum sign, 80 mil, Engineer Grade Reflective, Red background,
White lettering
1- STAY IN VEHICLE UNTIL IN UNLOADING ZONE




1- SEE ATTENDANT BEFORE UNLCADING ANYTHING
Want to have same size font as on the signs above.

24" Wide x 12" High Aluminum sign, 80 mil, Engineer Grade Reflective, Red
background, White lettering

1- DEMOLITION $ FEE

1- TIRES § FEE

1- CLEAN WOOD § FEE

1- PROPANE TANKS § FEE

1- ITEMS WITH FREON $ FEE

1- SHINGLES $ FEE

We would like all on 1 line if possible. Want to have same size font as on the
signs above.

24" x 24" RAluminum sign, 80 mil, Engineer Grade Reflective, White backgrournd,
Black lettering, with Black border

1- ENTER 5ﬁ (arrow below letters)
1- STOP TO SHOP iﬂ (arrow below letters)
1- RETURN TO DROP-OFF POINT iﬁ' (arrow below letters)

Want to have same size font as on the signs above.

18" x 18" Aluminum sign, 80 mil, Engineer Grade Reflective, White background,
Black lettering, with Black border

2= EXIT * (arrow below letters}
Want to have largest size font that will fit.

24" Wide x 12" High Aluminum sign, 80 mil, Engineer Grade Reflective, Blue
background, White lettering :

1- RECYCLABLES

1- TRASH

Want to have largest size font that will fit.

We agreed on all signs and added two additional ones. Poles and mounting screws
are also needed for most signs.

“Only Readfield and Wayne residents may leave and take items from the Swap Shop.
Residents may not give items to employees.” (Red, 247 x 24”7)

“Thank you for visiting the Transfer Station. All transactions must have a
receipt. Have a nice day!” (Green, 36" x 36")

Swap Shop-Update from Teresa. John Parker who organized the shop died last week.
10 mins

We agreed that the Swap shop is a good thing. It’s currently open whenever the
transfer station is open. There should be equal access to all residents who
enter the shop. The shop needs to be monitored for drop-offs so the items are
appropriate. Employee resident may only use the shop on their day off or during
their break. 8Sign needed “Residents may not give items to emplovees.” Aaron
will loock into a clothing deposit bin now that we don't have John to sort the
clothirng. We need to advertise for volunteers for the shop. For now, either
clese the shop with an explanatory sign that asks for new volunteers, or have
employees maintain the shop on Thursdays when the site is only open for
commercial haulers and they are in-between drop-offs.

4. Paving of the previously paved portions of the transfer station. 5 mins




Wayne will not, and really should not, pay for repaving, which a capital cost.
Readfield may pay for repaving and stripping whatever they can afford. Funds
were approved from the transfer station carry-forward account at the June 2015
town meeting.

5. Setting next agenda 5 mins

Ttems for consideration for meeting Wednesday November 4™ at the Readfield Town Office

Update from transfer station manager, Promote recycling, Minutes and record keeping of
same, Maintaining anecdotal records, other?

We agreed not to meet in August as we have now covered everything needed. 1If
something were to arise in the meantime we can call an additional meeting.

Draft respectfully submitted by: Kathryn Mills Woodsum, July 10, 2015




HONB)S IJSUBA],
A0
32EF( UMO], 3T
18 00g% 350l o3
wiq Jnod aseyang

DINI0IG SH[) IPISUL F[IAIA] NED
oL pIjAL JO IS1| 21)) DA

A103epuRA ST SuI[aAooy

IAUNOI SHAVS DNI'TOAIHY
MOWIAONOL ¥ILLIAL V304
YTHLIDOL ONITIADTL

pF1€-§89 dnoydofay,

'NON)E)S AJSLEL ] S1)) )6 FLNA)] AE6I|] 24N} 0 pAN)IMT
-aai aq jou [ Lap ‘doxp 03 geia £arg) swa)y S0 53a) Aressaaau
M) 2ABY JOU OP UMG) SN JO S)OprERS Uy Eser doap nok
58 {ud,, ® up aq A HoyE)g Jagsuea ], o3 e syl Sujddoap oy
833 |[V 219 ‘643Indmod ‘s, A L ‘S35saapum ‘524018 ‘sa0juiafin Al
se gittay s ae) Jjo doap Jo 2wy ju eao0) e Aed aany Ked s
uonE)g Jajsunl], o1y Suisn pApRaY put suivp Jo S)uIMEIY

SANITAAIND NOLLVLS HAASN VUL

. “sa[Bunys Suygoor
10 J201J33YS S€ YINS PooM alf) 0] payaene SunpLue sAEa) Jou
ABW NOATTIMOTIV ST AOOM THLVHIL HASSHEd ON

. -pajdecot 0s|u 2Iu ‘sa]SUTyE UspooM

pue (ssejd ou) s100p % SMOpUIM ‘pIeoqaionted 79 diyo ‘poom
-Kjd amyumany paymed LpyBr 40 PaySILIEA 20 puE 012 ‘sjjoq
“g1et SARY LN JOqUINT PAMO][E STISQUIN] [ELOISUSURP ||
ZdISVM QOOM NVHTD SI.LVHM

-uaumatodde ue aysLn 0} sAepsinuy ],
10 ‘skepsan], ‘SABPUORY +1]€-689 1180 Lrw nof “oofard e Sutep
$] Ol JUEIPIS2L B 10 JOJIRIUOD B 258 NOA J] "PEO] (28D 30313 JURp
-UaNE UE SABY 0] St paRUMIEIes Buned woly ofid aisem poom
ueao 21y dooy UBd am Azm AUO S, -3)SEM PODM HEBI[D JO 16K
1ad suoy paipuny gog punose ssaooid am pue ‘uo)scgd punoa
ase soq) Suiddn ojsem poom ues[D [EAOUR Sif JOJ (HONSLE)
sajer Suiddil-uonyomsp Aed 01 aawy [[[M M S[epISjEW J[qE
-1daoorun g1m perRutIBIUGD I 3]1d 3)SBM PODM UBSED JE) §] "BIIE
apid ysnig 31 aplsUE ajsem pooM UBafD sy} a[id 0} JA( Woy tols
-siunied poAleDal OABY BA “t2punid qm e Jo SuMy-sUj JuBLEM O)
a]sEM POOM WBS[D (Bnous opd Y20is 1SN 54 “UCHES JajsTRl)
UIOJ]. 31SBM POOM UED{0 SUTADUIST JO 1500 9If) J3MO] 0} JapIo U]

HLLSVA GOOM NVI'TO

"a11d 3sedwron 2y) woy jsodwod Jo joxong uoped Ay suo
“jaam B 29U ‘a3e) ABW SJUSPISAT sudBAy pUe PRALIpeay]

i

LSOdINOD OL LVHM

ONI'TOADHNY ST ONLLSOdINOD

20[J0 UMO} INOA |[BD =
SELI-ELL W RUBNO3T |[BD  «
F10IUWBHOID MMM 01 O

SU0)IBUIIOJU] 3301 10

Poos,

Jaded 79 saxoq paxepy

(01 'saxjons Jaduwmg “Fuypis) (KA
AYSUMLERL],

RO,

(9 paxlew
J1 usAs) wieoy auaiAskled Jo @iuesjolfig

sMoq 3 uogqly
siapuipfa auedod ]
sdeq dip oeod
iy ro desm anseid

sequsel), e
HOlAPUUSHIBLG e
aquaTas uFZ0s] e
sdeqpeasd »

:sieq anseld

spamo) tadng

supjdey tadug

sdieqs pus seipaan ON

(24095 03 wIna1) sqing 3y
waasalon]) 1oedwod {ySiL) Juadsapuesu|

‘sqing 131y

SBAIUY

Tan| A

(jawon e 1t J50dutea wea nok mo) peod
@Ak L Jo apse|d a8 mup sadojanug
siaderq

saotjs 3 TuIo[D

deis-ajqqng

augeyje ‘sapaleg

*Kydiuz aq pInoys s1ameEos ||y

(s10]00 1|¥) S1ET % SAINOH S5BY3 ||y
SSVID
SWBJ WSO
|OJ/5UBD) WKy o

(Aidwa) sue) josoiay  »

SUIDUEL »

TYLIN
PH# A0 TH M

payews sBegl FuiddoygyKiado1p onseld  »
{weojosfs 1dsoxa)

L1 # B UNM PHUEW SSUIBILGD DIIPM 1Y »
sapog WSl e

sanraiiy -

sanog e e

JLLSY1d

SO BZZId »

SOXOR BID -+

SBXOF] 219D .

sIWELHD) ondasy P SaX0E YUK e
SUOMBD BOINT PN«
{ugapo) sajepd sodeg o
SYOOE J5400) PUEH  »

SHCOQ JUOKJ ®

Jadeg Fuddeayy, o

SIOP[O4 o)l

sadojaaug 3 jedeg so1jo e
soeg tade e

SSO[END WU .
soureSap e

spasu) @ seadedsmap  »

SaxOg] preogpIE]) e

Hikdvd

{S1sMIBUeD mWoJ) spI| pak sdoy
11% 240m3a a583]] “1ayaoy paxim 3g
[& oea SSBL) 9 [BI3IA] “Yselq “adeg

%a&_.@




. loyoenuoy sufept  pleypesy
anjeniilg # 91Eld
# B[0AT] :

e aen

aang 5613 nouw,
s LIOBL] LA ‘Pajdeljod S8) 4B 40} PaNSSEaq im ydiasal ¢ i$ sajsg Bujseion s

-sa0p pepdoidde jo yuamfed Apran o) pue ‘sobieyo fesodsip 40} 13,920} 61§ ¥ 10) 0g'§ "snuL

63558 0} ‘spuoj 3oafal 10 jdoage 0} Suo| YR {IM. Inp uo Jepuay S oYL ‘J4jEIEd 21 Qg WaoseIonld|
; ¥ o 0.4 (0-0-Vv-vyy) sapsireg sjgeabieyzey
T3 SYUEL SES WsH , [TX {suseLog B B 581050 J0GH) UoIsIAGS)
oL ' punod 00}, a8 (.LEEL) UDISMERL]
[ PG OF, [T ougioRy X2 Jequiid
25 SpUNog 0% 01 a1} "80uBUIRIO BunaAcey pue 5)SEM DHOS PIOUNEDY JO UMO L, BY) YHM SOUEPIOSIE U} 3 8h30 PIBH
puntd 3| pieog ja0jas pegpeey ol Ag pedope sabuelo o) Joofyns o stio)jpuoa pue 538} iy (1] Preogiey
: E 9% 19UUBSS JoJuap Jendwos Jeindwod
YR 1VS ]

hnw‘uowe 00B$  solomsL S PPN
o8 14 S8y L SNl SZ O 8Y]
a% [] SejlL e . Ll o) .91 X3 {sae| lo [e5) g|)abegyejsueg -mEAM_
¥$ 2% &1 01EL 24 {125 oE} sBeg/a/IeE UNpBly
% 18 L&l E1dn 43 (18 05) eBeg/saneg sbim
oweq jo seg IRSEd ¢ B[3uRH
4Gl O} J3A0 PSPUNDY 40 SPIEDGARIS L2 YIA 1IN} JEY J0 SPRAGERS DL
TS02 0L 1B YSBX MG JenBay sy 0w of Lea JPE 0] J8AG PEPUNDY J0 SPIROGBRS V2. A Jaan pepuncy JoU lo Spieogapls MoygRs
SuO)Ias £XZ Jufdn g jodied Jo SHIRCIA JENS)| | »8E O] JBAD PEpUNDY Jo SPIBOGERIS (SE UM 1aha papuno).fo deo 'spIecqep)s L,
[1%] {z1xg1)ebreya 5pEo Jallely - syanJl g sdn-¥o1d
8% [z1xBebe
a3 {gxs)unipom 8l% 083 553 (1] (1153 08$ 088 | az2¢ 0z$ [15] [T33 oy | peonen
3 (oayiews|  siny| ouls | ozis | oes 093 [TT2) go1s | ooes | oad ovg [ [ ned | peorcr
2% s od] 9228 | oms | sEis | 063 08eS ovzs | oo | oldd (i aps. as gp$ | peojund | (psmA oknoioes siseg)
£$ 18l : EALTE
0% Suidg xog] |
5 ) [ 1§ [T [T [T s | 58 [T] 5§ £8 [ 5]
02 unanDfiuy o] aes [T 0z$ [T 08% ] ors ozé { gis [TX] 1§ 01$ %
S IIn| [T3 sbé 088 0z$ 083 093 [ [13] FIE] [T1] 818 [T
1L b | uajnd Jo i [ .
0z4 ] Jebjioas JeuD)| }
8% {uopoeg Jed) jeunioes Jo Jeuo payms| [F1] (23 0E$ (1] [T13 55% 564 0Z4 B123 [0 €18 [t
[ JaLljpaipad UHING Yum ejos| ool [11] 08% [T 0913 1% 08 1 a9l 0ES [14] Fis] [T
nﬂa JaunoaNmat UG QN Lir 205 08! 0ZL$ 085 08¢ [T333 091 [T1X3 ong ar [ 1] 15 0e$ | peollind | (i ognopes siser)
[ qn|
. " ; o Kops |, fogg | Aoz | Mgy | Aog fo g
b . i wwmsuwn ¢..mn.8_u..ww rw_o.__.m« Lw_aww: Aopi-oL leoums | 1eeuma ._.a.wham.ﬂ | suoq |pimpumg} woyg | Buo  |piepums
{013 "s1ameys-gn) ‘sjecn) _ ojuol z. azig lihd Juedwon.
siva[ge 24188d o ssefiiag SPEQT] JOjjed. DL —










Readfield Select Board and Town Manager Retreat — approved report
August 8, 2014; 8:00 am ~ 4:00 pm
Facilitated by Dana Lee, Lee Facilitation Services

Attending: Chair Sue Reay, V. Chair Val Pomerleau, Selectmen Allen Curtis, Greg Durgin and Tom
Dunham, Town Manager Stefan Pakulski

¢ Parts of the meeting were dedicated to a Q and A with state representatives running for
election and with RSU Supt. Donna Wolfrom, Finance Director Brigette Williams and
School Board Member David Greenham
Past Year Successes
Many policies have been updated and approved by the Select Board (SB).
The SB appointed Ad Hoc Committees as needed to help review policies; three ad hoc
committees are still currently working: Public Works Reporting Committee, Roles of Liaisons

Committee, and Road Bond Reporting Committee.

Had discussions attempting to better determine Town Manager workload, SB expectations and
how they affect workload. Had discussions with Town Manager regarding time management.

Focused on the proper roles of SB Members, how we communicate and function has been
discussed and is improving.

The SB achieved some improvements in participation and transparency using the Town's
website, the Messenger, taking more comments at meetings, and use of ad hoc committees.

The Town received another good audit report.

SB members attended all the Budget Committee and RSU budget meetings.

The Town Manager'actively managed the use of the Enterprise Funds.

The Ballfield Committee achieved the creation of a ballfield with Ioﬁal and business support.

There was good progress made on trails development by the Trails Committee.




Frustrating Issues / Concerns

The roles, responsibilities, communication and expectations among and between Select Board
Members and the Town Manager needs improvement. “Surprises” are still occurring to both the
TM and to the SB members; evidence of communication improvement needs.

The Board stressed the need for Board members and staff to be very clear, thorough and
accountable to Readfield citizens. This will allow for greater trust and respect among and
between residents, the Select Board and Town Manager.

The Chair is still having occasional issues with Board following proper communication policies,
including when complaints are made regarding the Town Manager. More understanding needed
about SB roles, functioning and protocols.

The SB needs to “speak with one voice,” referring agenda issues to SB Chair, accept
democratically made decisions, even if an SB Member disagreed.

The rise of unionization of employees has put strains on the SB and Town Manager; unsure of
what direction this will take, but will likely require a lot of Town Manager and SB time and
ultimately, a lot of “fence-mending.”




Goal Prioritization
Numbers in parentheses indicate number of responses.

{6} SB and Town Manager communication / trust / functioning needs improvement.

* Every six weeks, the Chair plans to hold an executive session of just SB members to
perform intra-board performance toward better following policies, chain of
communication, proper roles, etc. These discussions will periodically involve the Town
Manager to share in how he fits into their SB improved functioning progress.

(6) Holding the mil rate / tax burden down.
e Can overtime be better managed? Would part-time employees be more cost-effective?
(4} Advance a public discussion regarding voting in the Town budget by secret ballot.

o Needs research on how to change to that adoption method, advance public information

on the topic, establish hearing date(s), SB to take time / take comments and input.
(3) Improve the timing and SB time allowed to understand the proposed budget.

e Speak to Budget Committee about an earlier Budget Calendar, working more closely
together (speaking at their meetings?). There is a September joint workshop with BC to
discuss priorities and process.

(2) Thoughtfully and effectively managing the union issues.

¢ Noted for the SB to take this slowly and thoughtfully. If the unions do not form, there
will be more work needed on Personnel Policies.

(2) Town Manager accountability / time management improvements.
(2) Library report / use of bank report to be issued and advanced

(2) Further develop and utilize format for Town Manager Evaluation {Workshop already
scheduled).

(1) Long-term road plan must be maintained.




(1) Long-term solid waste and recycling plan to be developed.
(1) Advance the installation of needed security cameras
Other Goal Items
Did not receive any priority responses during scoring.

Investigate the staffing of Transfer Station Manager and Road Commissioner duties / Town
Manager workload.

Better understand the audit, terminology, cash flow, Tax Anticipation Notes, fund balance and
options {(Workshop already scheduled for 827).

Hold an “all-committees” workshop to discuss adherence to policies and guidelines (Workshop
already scheduled)

Advance a successful Fire Station addition plan.
Advance the repair of Old Woolen Bridge.

Conduct research on cost and functionality of a GIS system for the Town / website.

Restore town boundary markers; include in CIP (Some progress).
s [nvolve abutting towns to cost-share.

Hold tabletop Emergency Operations Planning exercise with the RSU {Already scheduled)




Chairman Sue Reay’s Review of Progress Spreadsheets with The Select Board

Ordinances:

e The Town Manager will work with Town Clerk to obtain and distribute all of the most
recently adopted Ordinances and update the web with same (by 8/16). SB will take up

spreadsheet again on 8/224. SB Members asked to give input (by 8/19) on which policies
are their priority to get reviewed.

Policies:

e SB Members asked for feedback on their priorities to Chair (by 8/19). The first policy to
be considered will be the Appointment Procedure Policy, along with review of roles of SB
and Town Manager. '

Workshops:

¢ The first four workshops have been identified and are confirmed. The Chair is seeking SB
feedback on which other workshops should be prioritized (by 8/19)

Budget Schedule:

» The Chair is seeking feedback on revising the budget schedute from SB Members, Budget
Committee Members and Administration.
















Portland, ME

Augusia, ME

Concord, NH
Stephen EF. Langsdorf

slangsdorf@preti.com Boston, MA
Washington, DC

Bedminster, NJ

July 28, 2015 Salem, MA

Teresa Shaw, Interim Town Manager
Town of Readfield .

8 Old Kents Hill Road

Readfield, ME 04355

RE: Representation of the Town of Readfield

Dear Teresa:

Please thank the Board of Selectmen for choosing Preti Flaherty Beliveau & Pachios,
LLP (“Preti”) to serve as legal counsel to you in the above-referenced matter. This letter will
confirm the nature and scope of our legal services and the business terms and conditions of our
relationship. With respect to this particular engagement, we understand these to be as follows:

Client. Our client in this matter is The Town of Readfield (the “Client”). We are not
being engaged to represent, and we will hot represent any other person or ent1ty in connect1on
with this matter except as we may hereafter expressly agree in ‘writing.

Professional Undertaking, We are being engaged to represent the Client as legal counsel
with respect to representation of the Town of Readfield as general counsel to the Town. This
representation will include reviewing and responding to telephone and email inquiries from
municipal officers and employees, legal research, attendance at Select Board, Planning Board
and other meetings when the Board deems necessary, drafting of contracts, ordinances and other

documents, and general availability to act as Town Counsel on all matters pertaining to Town
business.

If you have any questions about any aspect of our representation or the scope of our
services, please contact me.

Matter Responsible Attorney; Hourly Rates and Fees. I will be your principal attorney
and primary contact at Preti and will have general responsibility for all aspects of our
relationship. My hourly rate is $200. Subject to my supervision, portions of our work may be
performed by other lawyers or paralegals here at Preti, with hourly rates of $200.

Commencement of Engagement. QOur representation of you in this engagement will
commence immediately. - o :

General Terms and Conditions. Other material terms and conditions of this -engagement
are set forth in the General Terms and Condmons of Engagement attached hereto and

Preti Flaherty
Beliveau & Pachios LLP .
Attorneys at Law 45 Memorial Circle, Augusta, ME 04330 | PO Box 1058, Augusta, ME04332-1058 | Tel 207.623,5300 |88.y§\6:§\[.ﬂret|.com




PRETI FLAHERTY

July 28, 2015
Page 2

incorporated herein by this reference. Your acceptance of this engagement letter also constitutes
your acceptance of and agreement to abide by the attached General Terms and Conditions of
Engagement. If any of these are not acceptable to you, please advise us now so that we may
resolve any differences and proceed with this engagement with a clear understanding of the
essential business terms of our relationship.

Please understand that while we cannot guarantee the outcome or success of this or any
other engagement or professional undertaking, we will strive to represent and serve your interests
in this matter effectively and efficiently.

We appreciate your business and confidence in Preti and I look forward to working with
you on this matter.

Sincerely,

e

Stephen E.F. Langsdorf
SEFL:ryp

8873081.1




PretiFiaherty

Compensation; Hourly Rates.

Consistent with ethical standards applicable to the
jurisdictions in which we practice, we charge reasonable
fees for our legal services. Numerous factors go into
the establishment of a reasonable fee, and the primary
factor will normally be our hourly rates, adjusted annually,
applicable to the particular matter and the number of
hours expended.

Expenses; Disbursements.

Typically, we charge our clients not only for legal services
rendered but also for other ancillary costs and services.
Examples include charges for long-distance telephone
calls, travel, courier services, computerized research
services, and the use of our facsimile, photocopy
and printing machines. These charges do not, in all
instances, reflect our actual out-of-pocket costs. For
disbursement items that exceed $500, we reserve the
right to transmit invoices to a client for direct payment.
For lesser disbursements, we will generally advance the
amount and include a charge for reimbursement in our
monthly statement. Extraordinary expenses will not
be incurred, except in emergency situations, without a
client’s specific authorization.

Invoices; Payment; Interest on

Past Due invoices.

Unless otherwise stated in the engagement |etter, we will
bill you monthly. All amounts owed to us for fees and
costs are due, and you agree to pay all such amounts,
within thirty (30} days of receipt of our invoice. We
reserve the right to assess a late fee of one and one-half
percent (1,5%) per month on all amounts unpaid more
than thirty (30) days. We may also suspend or terminate
services on account of nonpayment, subject to the
limitations of applicable bar rules.

Deposits.

We reserve the right to request an appropriate deposit
as security for payment of our fees and other charges.
This deposit, unless it is applied to cutstanding invoices,
will be held by us as security for your payment of our

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ENGAGEMENT | PAGE 1 OF 2

General Terms
and Conditions
of Engagement

invoices from other funding sources. In the event
the deposit is utilized to cover any unpaid invoices,
we reserve the right to require that the deposit be
replenished. Any unapplied balance remaining from
the deposit at the conclusion of an engagement after
payment of all invoices will be promptly sent to you. You
will not be paid interest on this deposit.

Escrow Deposits.

Any escrow deposits we receive from you will be placed
in a trust account for your benefit. Unless we otherwise
agree, your escrow deposit will be placed in a pooled
account, and you will not be paid interest on it. By
court rule in each jurisdiction where we have an office,
interest earned on the pooled account is payable to a
charitable foundation established in accordance with
such court rule. If you prefer your escrow deposits held
in a segregated account, please advise us.

Arbitration.

if you disagree with the amount of our fee, please take
up the question with your principal lawyer contact of
with the Firm's Managing Partner. In most cases, such
disagreements are resolved to the satisfaction of both
sides with little inconvenience or formality. In the event
we are unable to resclve a fee dispute, you have the
right to request arbitration under applicable Bar rules,
and we agree to participate fully in that process.

Estimates.

Although we may from time to time respond to a client
request for an estimate of the amount of professional
fees or expenses that may be incurred in an engagement,
or on a particular task or undertaking in furtherance of an
engagement, such estimates, even though given by us in
good faith and on the basis of our best judgment when
given, are inherently inexact and are always subject
to unforeseen contingencies and changed facts and
circumstances. Accordingly, we cannot and will not be
bound by any such estimates, unless we expressly agree
in writing at the time such estimate is given.




Communications with the Firm.

Unless you advise us otherwise, we will assume that you
agree and consent to our communications with you by
telephone, regular mail, e-maif, fax and courier services.
To maintain attorney-client privilege with you, all of our
communications should be made with devices that are not
subject to monitoring by third parties.

Conflicts Waiver.

We are a general service law firm that you recognize
has represented, now represents and will continue
to represent, nurmerous clients (including, without
limitation, your debtors, creditors and direct
competitors), nationally and internationally, over a wide
range of industries and businesses and in a wide variety
of matters. Consequently, without a binding waiver,
conflicts of interest might arise that could deprive you
or other clients of the right to select us as their counsel.
Thus, as an integral part of the engagement, you agree
that we may, now or in the future, represent other
entities or persons, including in litigation, adversely
to you or any affiliate of yours on matters that are not
substantially related to (a) the legal services that we have
rendered, are rendering or in the future will render to
you under the engagement, and {b} other legal services
that the Firm has rendered, is rendering or in the future
will render, to you or any affiliate {an “Allowed Adverse
Representation”). You also agree that you will not, for
yourself or any other entity or person, assert that either
{a) our representation of you or any affiliate in any past,
present or future matter, or (b) our actual, or possible,
possession of confidential information belonging to
you or any affiliate is a basis to disqualify us from
representing another entity or person in any Allowed
Adverse Representation. You further agree that any
Allowed Adverse Representation does not breach any
duty that we owe to you or any affiliate.

Termination or Withdrawal from
Engagement.

You have the right to discharge us for any reason at any
time on reasonable notice. We have the right to terminate
services and withdraw as your counsel on reasonable
notice under any of the circumstances provided in the
applicable Bar rules, or if any of the preceding terms and
conditions are not fulfilled, or if any invoice is not paid
within thirty (30) days. Unless previously terminated, our
representation will terminate upon the conclusion of our
work for you in this matter, but in no event later than our
sending you our final inveoice in this matter. Termination
of our services will not affect your responsibility for
payment of legal services rendered, additional charges

incurred before termination and charges incurred in
connection with an orderly transition of the matter.
Unless you engage us after completion of the matter
to provide additional advice on issues arising from the
matier, we will have no continuing obligation to advise
you with respect to future legal developments.

File Ownership; Client Property.

The records which we create during the course of this
engagement reflecting our records and work product
related to this engagement, whether in paper or
electronic form, are the property of and are owned by us.
Accordingly, such files shall, at all times, be subject to our
continuing retention and/or destruction in accordance
with such policies and procedures as we may, from time
to time, adopt. We recognize that you are entitled to the
return of all original documents and other property or
papers that you deliver to us. Additionally, we agree to
provide you with copies of documents we have received
from others on your behalf, as well as other materials
not otherwise available to you or that, in our opinion,
would be of value to you. If at any time during or at the
conclusion or earlier termination of this engagement you
should determine or believe that our records contain, or
that we otherwise have in our possession or under our
control, any original signed documents, papers or other
property which belongs to you, we strongly recommend
that you specifically identify the same to us and request
and obtain delivery and return of the same from us
promptly, but in any event, not later than ninety {20} days
following the conclusion or earlier termination of this
engagement, after which time we will assume no further
responsibility for the same.

File Retention and Destruction.

Upon the conclusion of this engagement, our records
concerning this engagement will be officially closed. On
your request, we will promptly return to you al! original
signed documents, papers and other property which may
then be in our possession which you specifically identify
to us as belonging to you. Our own files pertaining to this
engagement, including, any documents, papers or other
property belonging to you, which you have not asked
to be returned, will initially be retained by us (either on
or off of cur premises), consistent with Bar rules. We
reserve the right after ten (10} years for any reason to
retain or to destroy all or portions of such closed files
in our sole discretion. We will destroy files in a manner
consistent with our professional obligation to preserve
the confidentiality of the materials and information
contained therein. Unless required by Bar rules, we will
hot provide further notice of our intended destruction of
these documents.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ENGAGEMENT | PAGE 2 OF 2




